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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL. APPEARANCE

The structure, sometimes known as Legislative Hall or the Territorial 
Capitol, is a simple, two-story frame building with shake-shingle roof, 
stoop porch and outside stairway at the west end of the building.

The tulip tree lumber employed in the siding is evidence that the 
lumber was produced at a time when sawmills were crude and dimension 
lumber was years in the future. In fact, the building may be slightly 
out-of-plumb; but then one must remember that it is on its fourth site, 
having been moved three times.

According to available information, the structure was erected during 
the French period, but it may not have been built until 1805 at what 
later became 217 Main Street. It was first moved to 911 N. 3rd Street 
but date of moving is a bit hazy. Then in 1919 it was moved to what was 
known as Harris on Park; and in 1933 it was altered somewhat in a resto­ 
ration project. Records are not complete on this but the large beam on 
the 1st floor was installed to support the 2nd floor.

In 1949 the structure was moved to its present site to make way for 
the expansion of Vincennes University. Not much was done in the manner 
of alteration except to restore siding; and the exterior stairway was 
rebuilt. Insofar as data is available the building was restored to 
known conditions.

Painted white, and with green shutters the house or Hall presents a 
charming appearance in the close company of William Henry Harrison's 
"Grouseland" and the replica of Elihu Stout's Print Shop next door.

The interior of the Capitol compliments the pleasing simplicity of 
the exterior. A plain, wood wainscot rises from the floor to the window 
sill of the 1st floor. Offices for the territorial officials, probably 
the Governor and Secretary, were housed on the 1st floor. Furnishings 
include the office desk of General John (Horsehead) Gibson, Secretary of 
Indiana Territory during all of the territorial period 1800-1816; and a 
desk reputedly that of Wm. Henry Harrison, Governor of Indiana Territory 
1800-1812.

From 1800 to 1804 the governing body consisted of a Governor and 3 
Judges. The peculiarly-shaped table which they reputedly used is on the 
2nd Floor. The ten Assemblymen (which became the Legislative body in 
1805), presumably met for at least some of its sessions in the building 
up until the time the capitol of Indiana Territory was removed to Corydon. 
The members of the Assembly used plain, hard benches such may be seen on 
the 2nd floor of the building.

Dimensions of Structure. 
Wide: 19 f - 6^"; Long: 26* - 1 3/4"; High: 18' + to eaves.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

In the closing years of the eighteenth century, the new government 
of these United States established in its expanding public domain, a 
model colonial policy which was one of the most progressive governmental 
experiments in history. The Indiana Territory State Memorial is main­ 
tained as a tribute to the Federal government of that period and this 
experiment.

Indiana (and Ohio) thus assumed the role of being the "proving 
ground" for American territorial policy. Further, the territorial 
government became considerably more democratic for Indiana, the prece­ 
dents of re-election of Council members and territorial delegates being 
implemented in this building.

The memorial to Vincennes as the capital of the Indiana Territory 
now consists of the subject structure which is reputed to have been the 
Capitol. Adjacent is a reconstruction of the print shop of Elihu Stout 
where was printed the first newspaper in Indiana Territory, as well as 
early laws.

Indiana Territory was the second territory within the Old Northwest, 
and Indiana was the second state carved from the region. Although most 
of the Old Northwest was included in the new Indiana Territory in 1800, 
the territory did not reach its maximum size until the addition of 
eastern Michigan and the Gore in 1803 when Ohio became a state.

TT c In^ana Territ°ry was the advance base for future expansion of the 
»^i JirT^iTSV116 S6at °f 8°vemment » ^d the structure known as 
Legislative Hall" became the Indiana Territorial governor's headquarters

The Capitol is believed to have housed some sessions of the Governor 
and Judges as they met in their legislative capacity; also the sessions 
of the General Assembly during the first thirteen years following the 
creation of the Territory which became effective on July 4, 1800.
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Statement of Significance

During 1804-1805 the northern part of Louisiana Territory (which had been 
acquired from France in 1803) was attached to Indiana Territory for adminis­ 
tration purposes, and the Governor and Judges adopted such laws as were 
necessary. Thus Vincennes might be considered to have been the seat of 
government for this area west of the Mississippi, as well as for Indiana 
Territory.

For more than 120 years after the first white men came to Indiana, there 
had been no capital or seat of government for the territory. Congress passed 
a bill creating the Indiana Territory out of the Northwest Territory, and a 
capital complete with governor and three judges, was set up at Vincennes. 
The Act became effective July 4, 1800 as indicated above. The territory 
designated included the present states of Indiana, Illinois, Michigan, 
Wisconsin and that part of Minnesota lying east of the Mississippi River. 
The governor and judges presided over the Indiana Territory until 1805, when 
a legislative body was established.

Captain William Henry Harrison received the appointment as governor 
from President Adams in 1800. Harrison, himself, built "Grouseland" which 
as fate would have it is just (west) across the street (Park Street) from 
the present site of the Capitol. Please note that, as indicated in Section 7. 
DESCRIPTION, paragraph 2, the Capitol has been moved three times and is on 
its fourth site. Its proximity to "Grouseland", however, enhances its 
position. The visitor may be inclined to think that the group may have 
been part of original planning but it is our responsibility to emphasize 
that it came to pass almost 150 years after the two structures were 
originally erected on other sites.

It is important to note that one of the persons closely associated with 
this structure went on to great fame. Win. Henry Harrison, Territorial 
Governor 1800-1812, treated with the Indians for land; fought with them near 
Prophets Town and there gained a reputation for military leadership which 
ultimately led to the campaign slogan "Tippecanoe and Tyler, Too!" 
In 1840 our same General Harrison was elected president as candidate of the 
Whig Party. He was not destined for completion of his term of office and 
died early in the term.

Presumably Indiana's first two U. S. Senators, Waller Taylor and James 
Noble, were associated with the legislative meetings held in the Capitol. 
They were seated in the U. S. Congress in December 1816.
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